
 
CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING 
Kyle Arthur, General Manager 

201 West Gray 
Norman, OK 73069 

(Multipurpose conference room) 
TIME: 6:30 P.M. 

THURSDAY, February 4, 2021 

TO ACCOMMODATE THE PUBLIC, INCLUDING PRESENTERS OF AGENDA ITEMS, WHO WISH TO PARTICIPATE BUT 
NOT TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON, VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE CAPABILITY IS BEING 
MADE AVAILABLE.  ALTHOUGH THIS ACCOMMODATION IS PROVIDED, MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC INCLUDING 
PRESENTERS ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN-PERSON. 
 
TO PARTICIPATE AND LISTEN TO THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE, CALL TOLL FREE, CALL 1-877-309-2073 ENTER 
ACCESS CODE: 221-465-309. 
 
TO PARTICIPATE AND LISTEN VIA A COMPUTER, SMARTPHONE, OR TABLET, GO TO 
HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/221465309  MEETING ACCESS CODE: 221-465-309 
 
FOR ALL THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING IN PERSON, FACE MASKS AND SOCIAL DISTANCING WILL BE 
REQUIRED TO PROTECT YOURSELF AND OTHERS ATTENDING. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
B. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN MEETING ACT  

C. ADMINISTRATIVE: 

1. STATUS REPORT OF THE DEL CITY PIPELINE PROJECT FROM ALAN PLUMMER ASSOCIATES, INC.  

2. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE BY JERROD SHOUSE OF SHOUSE & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING 

3. DISCUSSION OF INITIAL DRAFT BUDGET FY 2021-2022 

D. ACTION:  PURSUANT TO 82 OKLA. STATUTES, SECTION 541 (D) (10), THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL PERFORM 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS BY RESOLUTION AND ALL OFFICIAL ACTIONS INCLUDING FINAL PASSAGE AND ENACTMENT OF 
ALL RESOLUTIONS MUST BE APPROVED BY A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENT, A QUORUM 
BEING PRESENT, AT A REGULAR OR SPECIAL MEETING. 

 
4. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2020. 

5. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR OPERATING ACCOUNT FOR 
NOVEMBER 2020. 

6. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR OPERATING ACCOUNT FOR 
DECEMBER 2020. 

7. DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE VOTE TO APPROVE THE FY 2019-2020 AUDIT TO BE PRESENTED 
TO THE BOARD BY FINLEY AND COOK. 

8. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF DECLARATION OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT 

E.  DISCUSSION 

9. LEGAL COUNSEL’S REPORT. 

10. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT. 

11. NEW BUSINESS (ANY MATTER NOT KNOWN PRIOR TO THE MEETING AND WHICH COULD NOT HAVE BEEN 
REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO THE POSTING OF THE AGENDA) 

F. ADJOURN 
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Central Oklahoma Master 

Conservancy District
FY 2022-2024 Budget Preliminary Review

February 4th, 2021



Overview

 Reduction in O&M Assessment for the next three fiscal years over the last 5 
years

 Repayment of the Del City pipeline project will commence in FY2021 

 By our loan agreement, it begins in March of 2021 which will include interest and 
administrative fees through that date

 Projected to begin full loan payment (loan amortization schedule finalized) in April

 All FY2021 expenses anticipated in FY 2021 budget (COMCD did not assess for these)

 The full impact of the loan repayment will be realized starting in FY2022

 FY2022 will be the first year’s budget that will follow the guidelines of the 
Budgeting Policy

 Includes CEEF investment account earnings as a credit to the total assessment

 Carryover maintained within established range



Projection for Remainder of FY21

Operating Acct Balance $2,264,051.31

Budgeted Expenses $627,377.33

Other Obligated Expenses $396,779.00

Possible Surplus Fund Expenses $1,054,177.00

Income for Remainder FY21 $771,159.00

Remainder $956,877.00
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FY22 – FY24 Draft Budgets

 FY 2022 Budget

 O&M Assessment:  $1.04M

 CEEF Earnings Credit:  $126K

 Power: $525K

 Energy SRF: $97.5K

 DC Pipeline SRF:  $440.5K

 Capital Assets: $0

 FY 2023 Budget

 O&M Assessment:  $1.13M

 CEEF Earnings Credit:  $126K

 Power:  $525K

 Energy SRF:  $97.1K

 DC Pipeline SRF:  $440.5K

 Capital Assets:  $0

 FY 2024 Budget

 O&M Assessment:  $1.19M

 CEEF Earnings Credit:  $126K

 Power:  $525K

 Energy SRF: $96.7K

 DC Pipeline SRF:  $440.5K

 Capital Assets:  $50K
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Budget Category Historical and

Projected Comparison

 Does not include Power or Loan 
Payments

 Personnel costs held fairly constant

 Retirement contribution decrease

 Professional services decreasing

 Significant expenditures early for IPR
related studies

 Insurance increase due to changes in
policy

 Adding umbrella and covering surge
towers

 Capital Assets decreasing

 Utilization of surplus funds

 $-
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Surplus Funds Utilization

 Back-up Generator

 Bid meeting held, 4 companies attended

 Bids due Feb 5th; opening the morning of the
8th

 Board contract approval required

 New Building

 Will need BOR clearance

 Will need to develop and approve records 
retention policy prior to demo

 Spare pump for main plant

 May require bids

 First year of estimated loan payments on 
behalf of all cities

 15-year note

Special Projects

Back-up Generator $450,000 

New Building $100,000 

Pump $55,000 

Old Office Demo $6,510 

Loan Payments $442,667 

$1,054,177 



FY22 Budget at-a-Glance
 Personnel

 Includes pay increases according to step schedule and COL adjustment

 Salary number now includes projection of overtime pay and any benefit allowance returned as income

 Training/Travel decreased to more accurately reflect historical spend

 Maintenance

 Increase in 5106 to reflect shift to renting equipment more often

 Utilities

 5201 increase based upon historical spend; significantly under-budgeted in the past

 Insurance

 Increased to reflect additional umbrella policy and coverage of above ground infrastructure

 Administrative

 Same as previous years; seems to be a good number based upon historical spend

 Professional Services

 Includes $25,000 for HMI work and $10,000 for Tinker pipeline engineering review

 Water Quality

 Slight increase based upon current monitoring contract

 Two OWRB studies listed, but not included in assessment

 Capital Assets

 Any needs to be handled through surplus funds



FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2021 Budget

 

PERSONNEL:

5001 Salary and Wages 500,585.00  $                525,614.25  $                551,894.96  $                448,000.00  $                       

5009 Employee Retirement 52,111.00  $                  54,716.55  $                  57,452.38  $                  45,500.00  $                         

5010 Directors Expenses 5,000.00  $                    5,000.00  $                    5,000.00  $                    5,000.00  $                           

5011 Payroll Taxes - Social Security 38,750.00  $                  40,687.50  $                  42,721.88  $                  33,000.00  $                         

5012 Training, Education & Associated Travel 7,500.00  $                    7,500.00  $                    7,500.00  $                    17,500.00  $                         

5013 Uniforms & Boots Allowance 2,800.00  $                    2,900.00  $                    2,900.00  $                    3,000.00  $                           

5014 Employee's  Health Insurance (Allowance and AF Accident) 52,000.00  $                  54,600.00  $                  57,330.00  $                  67,365.00  $                         

5015 Workers Compensation 17,500.00  $                  18,025.00  $                  18,565.75  $                  21,550.00  $                         

5017 Service Longevity Awards 5,962.00  $                    6,954.00  $                    7,960.00  $                    2,950.00  $                           

Sub Total 682,208.00  $                715,997.30  $                751,324.97  $                643,865.00  $                       

MAINTENANCE:

5101 Plant, Dam,  Pipeline & Shop  R & M 127,500.00  $                127,500.00  $                127,500.00  $                125,000.00  $                       

5103 Vehicles: R & M 22,000.00  $                  25,000.00  $                  25,000.00  $                  32,500.00  $                         

5104 Buildings, Roads & Grounds R & M 17,500.00  $                  17,500.00  $                  17,500.00  $                  20,000.00  $                         

5106 Equipment: R & M & Rental 22,000.00  $                  22,000.00  $                  24,000.00  $                  17,000.00  $                         

Sub Total 189,000.00  $                192,000.00  $                194,000.00  $                194,500.00  $                       
UTILITIES:

5201 Telephone Service/ IT Service 25,000.00  $                  26,000.00  $                  27,040.00  $                  19,500.00  $                         

5204 Electricity 10,000.00  $                  10,500.00  $                  11,025.00  $                  8,500.00  $                           

5205 Propane 3,000.00  $                    3,000.00  $                    3,000.00  $                    6,000.00  $                           

5206 Waste Removal 1,200.00  $                    1,200.00  $                    1,300.00  $                    800.00  $                              

Sub Total 39,200.00  $                  40,700.00  $                  42,365.00  $                  34,800.00  $                         

INSURANCE & BONDS                

5301 Insurance 65,000.00  $                  66,950.00  $                  68,958.50  $                  45,000.00  $                         

5304 Treasury & Employee Bond 250.00  $                       250.00  $                       257.50  $                       250.00  $                              

Sub Total 65,250.00  $                  67,200.00  $                  69,216.00  $                  45,250.00  $                         

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE

5401 Office Supplies, Materials & Equipment 17,000.00  $                  17,000.00  $                  18,000.00  $                  15,000.00  $                         

Sub Total 17,000.00  $                  17,000.00  $                  18,000.00  $                  15,000.00  $                         

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE

5501 Legal 35,000.00  $                  36,050.00  $                  37,131.50  $                  60,000.00  $                         

5502 Accounting & Annual Audit 25,000.00  $                  25,000.00  $                  25,000.00  $                  24,550.00  $                         
5503 Consultants & Engineers  $                 35,000.00  $                 36,500.00  $                 38,000.00  $                        40,000.00 

DRAFT BUDGET FY 2022-24

Draft Budgets FY22-24; Page 1 of 4



FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2021 Budget

 

DRAFT BUDGET FY 2022-24

Sub Total 95,000.00  $                  97,550.00  $                  100,131.50  $                124,550.00  $                       

Water Quality Services

5601 OWRB/USGS.(Stream Gauge) 12,400.00  $                  12,400.00  $                  12,400.00  $                  17,600.00  $                         

5603 WQ monitoring - OWRB 70,000.00  $                  72,100.00  $                  74,263.00  $                  66,000.00  $                         

56XX OWRB Internal Loading Study 22,000.00  $                  
56XX OWRB Trends Analysis 21,107.50  $                  

5607 Oxygen Tank Rental 74,000.00  $                         

Sub Total 82,400.00  $                  84,500.00  $                  86,663.00  $                  157,600.00  $                       

5950 NEW CAPITAL ASSETS SUBTOTAL $0.00 40,000.00  $                  50,000.00  $                  43,000.00  $                         

CAPITAL ASSETS REPLACEMENT RESERVE FUND

OPER AND MAINTENANCE SUB-TOTAL 1,170,058.00  $             1,254,947.30  $             1,311,700.47  $             1,258,565.00  $                    

Less Excess Carryover -   $                             

Less Investment Account Earnings 126,000.00  $                126,000.00  $                126,000.00  $                

O&M TOTAL 1,044,058.00  $             1,128,947.30  $             1,185,700.47  $             1,258,565.00  $                    

Other Assessments

Pumping Power 525,000.00  $                525,000.00  $                525,000.00  $                525,000.00  $                       

Energy Project SRF Loan 97,514.88  $                  97,111.98  $                  96,735.60  $                  97,386.06  $                         

Del City Pipeline Project SRF Loan 440,565.60  $                440,565.60  $                440,565.60  $                $0.00

2,107,138.48  $             2,191,624.88  $             2,248,001.67  $             1,880,951.06  $                    Total Assessments

Draft Budgets FY22-24; Page 2 of 4
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DRAFT BUDGET FY 2022-24

O&M 457,297.40  $                494,478.92  $                519,336.80  $                551,251.47  $                       

Pumping Power 194,775.00  $                194,775.00  $                194,775.00  $                194,775.00  $                       

Energy Project Loan Payments 71,595.75  $                  71,298.12  $                  71,018.28  $                  71,841.36  $                         

Del City Pipeline Project Loan Payments 192,967.73  $                192,967.73  $                192,967.73  $                $0.00

Total

916,635.89  $                953,519.77  $                978,097.82  $                817,867.83  $                       

O&M 421,799.43  $                456,094.71  $                479,022.99  $                508,460.26  $                       

Pumping Power 264,600.00  $                264,600.00  $                264,600.00  $                264,600.00  $                       

Del City Pipeline Project Loan Payments 177,988.50  $                177,988.50  $                177,988.50  $                $0.00

Total 864,387.93  $                898,683.21  $                921,611.49  $                773,060.26  $                       

O&M 164,961.16  $                178,373.67  $                187,340.67  $                198,853.27  $                       

Pumping Power 65,625.00  $                  65,625.00  $                  65,625.00  $                  65,625.00  $                         

Energy Project Loan Payments 25,919.13  $                  25,813.86  $                  25,717.32  $                  25,901.99  $                         

Del City Pipeline Project Loan Payments 69,609.36  $                  69,609.36  $                  69,609.36  $                  $0.00

Total 326,114.66  $                339,421.90  $                348,292.36  $                290,380.26  $                       

Norman Assessments

Midwesst City Assessments

Del City Assessments

Draft Budgets FY22-24; Page 3 of 4
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MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

Thursday, December 3, 2020 

Location-8726 SE 15th Street Midwest City, OK 73110 

Due to expiration of the emergency amendments of the Open Meeting Act that allowed all Board Members to 
meet virtually by videoconference, the December 3, 2020, meeting is required to be in‐person with a quorum of 
Board Members in attendance at the meeting location.  However, to accommodate the public, including 
presenters of Agenda items, who wish to participate but not to attend the meeting in person, videoconference 
and teleconference capability is being made available.  Although this accommodation is provided, members of 
the public including presenters are welcome to attend the meeting in‐person. 
 
To participate and listen to the meeting by telephone, call toll free, 1‐877‐568‐4106 
 enter access code: 623‐020‐117. 
To participate and listen via a computer, smartphone, or tablet, go to 
HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/623020117 meeting access code: 623‐020‐117 
 
For all those attending the meeting in person, face masks and social distancing will be required to protect 
yourself and others attending. 
 
A.  Call to Order  

President Amanda Nairn called the meeting to Order at 6:30 pm.  

Roll Call:   
 
Board Members Present: 
President Amanda Nairn  
Vice President Casey Hurt 
Treasurer Jann Knotts 
Secretary Michael Dean  
Board Member Kevin Anders 
 
 
Board Members Absent:    
Roger Frech 
William Janacek 
 
Kyle Arthur, General Manager, Videoconference  
Staff Present:   
Kelley Metcalf, Administrative Assistant 
Tim Carr, Operations & Maintenance Supervisor 
Present, Legal Counsel, Dean Couch 
Paul Streets joined in person at 8:52 PM    

Callers Announced:     
Geri Wellborn, Mark Roberts, Julie Chambers, Monty Porter, Curt Dikes, Roger Frech, William Janacek 
 
 
       
B.  Statement of compliance with Open Meeting Act  
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Kelley Metcalf, Administrative Assistant, stated the notice of the monthly board meeting had been posted in 

compliance with the Open Meeting Act. 

 

C.1.  Status report of the Del City Pipeline Project from Alan Plummer Associates, Inc. (Tim Carr/Kyle Arthur) 

Kyle Arthur reported: 

Line 1 

 Trenchless Pulls #3 and #4, from the existing check structure ≈500 LF northwest of Mackleman Dr (STA 
21+61) to the transition from concrete to ductile iron pipe ≈130 LF west of Cinder Dr (STA 45+80), have 
been completed without major issue.   

 The pipeline liner has been successfully hydrostatically tested to project specifications. 

 A temporary connection was made at the northwest end of Pull #3 and a permanent connection was 
made at the southeast end of Pull #4.  Both connection locations have been filled with controlled low‐
strength material (flowable fill). 

 The decision has been made to keep the original plan of installing a replacement check structure at STA 
21+61 for the existing structure that was removed. 

 Shutdown #1 has been finished and the Del City Pipeline is back online until Shutdown #2 in December. 
Line 2 and 3: 

 No changes.  Pipeline construction is finished, save for final sitework and rehabilitation and pipeline 
inspection. 

 

D.  Action: PURSUANT TO 82 OKLA. STATUTES, SECTION 541 (D) (10), THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL 

PERFORM OFFICIAL ACTIONS BY RESOLUTION AND ALL OFFICIAL ACTIONS INCLUDING FINAL PASSAGE AND 

ENACTMENT OF ALL RESOLUTIONS MUST BE APPROVED BY A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

PRESENT, A QUORUM BEING PRESENT, AT A REGULAR OR SPECIAL MEETING. 

D.2.  Consideration and possible approval of minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held on Thursday, November 

5, 2020  

Resolution for Acceptance of Minutes for Board of Directors regular board meeting on November 5, 2020. The 

Resolution states: it is hereby resolved that minutes of the regular board meeting held on Thursday, November 

5, 2020, are approved. Kevin Anders made a motion seconded by Casey Hurt to approve the Resolution.  

 

Roll call vote: 

President Amanda Nairn    Yes 

Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 

Treasurer Jann Knotts    Yes 

Secretary Michael Dean    Yes 

Member William Janacek    Absent 

Member Roger Frech    Absent 

Member Kevin Anders    Yes 

Motion Passed 
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D.3.  Consideration and possible approval of financial statements for operating account for October 2020  

Mr. Arthur, between the November board meeting and this board meeting, noticed an error on account 5507‐

engineering‐reuse project.  $24,666.64 was allocated by mistake to this account. The correct account should be 

5607 oxygen/tank rental. The accountant was notified, and the error was corrected. The District received, 

$9,414.61, from Bureau of Reclamation, in the month of October, for cost share on wetland project. 

Resolution for Acceptance of financial statements for operating account for October 2020.  The Resolution 

states: it is hereby resolved that financial statements for operating account for October 2020 are approved.  

Jann Knotts made a motion seconded by Michael Dean to approve the Resolution.  

Roll call vote: 

President Amanda Nairn    Yes 
Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 
Treasurer Jann Knotts    Yes 
Secretary Michael Dean    Yes 
Member William Janacek    Absent 
Member Roger Frech    Absent 
Member Kevin Anders    Yes 
 

  Motion Passed 

       

D.4. Discussion, consideration, and possible vote to approve an agreement with the OWRB to conduct a long‐

term trend analysis of Lake Thunderbird water quality data.  Cost $42,215.00 

Monty Porter, from OWRB, presented a PowerPoint presentation.  The objective of the project is to use 

statistical techniques to detect long term trends in the water quality of Lake Thunderbird and provide data 

visualization tools for dissemination for COMCD and the public. The project period is expected to take 6 months 

at a total cost of $42,215.  For details on the project discussed please reference the packet document “Long‐

term Trend Analysis of Lake Thunderbird Water Quality Data”. 

Michael Dean asked if each annual data would have separate data points.  Mr. Porter explained that 

independent data points would be used since there is no missing years of data. Mr. Frech asked Mr. Porter in 

the trend analysis if they anticipate the trend findings to be like the shallow regions’ findings or more like the 

findings in an inflow of river water. Mr. Porter stated looking at an analysis done in 2010 the largest difference in 

lakes, across the state, was from an ecological perspective.  In Lake Thunderbird, he thinks there maybe a 

difference in the mid lake areas as well. Many things such as concentrations and nutrient cycling occurring will 

cause differences in the mid lake areas. 

Kevin Anders asked if the software used is unique to this project.  Mr. Porter stated the software that will be 

used is a statistical production software.  The model that OWRB develops will be specific for Lake Thunderbird, 

and well‐known procedures will be used.  One of the first things that will need to be determined is if parametric 

or nonparametric methods can be used.  The model will be developed based upon the exploratory analysis.  

Casey Hurt asked if dashboard would be available.  Mr. Porter stated that would be up to the District but 

OWRB’s intentions would be to make the data available to the public.   

Resolution for Acceptance of Long‐Term Water Quality Trend Analysis.  The Resolution states: it is hereby 

resolved that an agreement to conduct a long‐term trend analysis of Lake Thunderbird water quality is 

approved. Kevin Anders made a motion seconded by Michael Dean to approve the Resolution. 
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Roll call vote: 

President Amanda Nairn    Yes 

Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 

Treasurer Jann Knotts      Yes 

Secretary Michael Dean     Yes 

Member William Janacek    Absent 

Member Roger Frech      Absent 

Member Kevin Anders      Yes 

Motion Passed 

 

 

D.5.  Discussion, consideration, and possible vote to approve a District salary schedule, and budget category 

adjustment for FY 2021 salaries 

Kyle Arthur gave a PowerPoint presentation.  Mr. Arthur met with the three member cities and obtained the 

matching job descriptions, salary schedules, and promotional plans.  From this information he created the 

proposed salary schedule and promotional plan as included in the packet titled “Salary and Promotion Plan 

Proposal and Salary Adjustment Authorization”.   Mr. Arthur recommended updating salary schedule for each 

job title to ensure that COMCD is competitive relative to compensation.  He stated it is important to articulate a 

“path” for current and future employees.  Mr. Arthur also recommended salary adjustments for three 

employees.  

The Board discussed possible scenarios where salary schedule adjustments or promotional increases might not 

occur in a given year, such as when there are salary freezes at one or more of the District’s member cities.  

Therefore, the Board requested that all salary schedule adjustments and promotional increases be subject to 

Board approval thru the budgeting process.  Mr. Arthur agreed and stated the employee manual will include this 

language.  

Resolution for Acceptance of District employee salary schedule.  The Resolution states: it is hereby resolved that 

the District salary schedule and FY 2021 budget category adjustments for salaries is approved.  Michael Dean 

made a motion seconded by Casey Hurt to approve the Resolution. 

Roll call vote: 

President Amanda Nairn    Yes 

Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 

Treasurer Jann Knotts      Yes 

Secretary Michael Dean     Yes 

Member William Janacek    Absent 

Member Roger Frech      Absent 

Member Kevin Anders      Yes 

Motion Passed 
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D.6. Discussion, consideration, and possible vote to approve modifications to District benefits and budget 
category adjustment for FY 2021 benefit expenditures 
 

Mr. Arthur gave a PowerPoint presentation which included recommendations to modify several District benefits 

to ensure the District has a competitive benefits package and to be more consistent and in‐line with the member 

cities.  These include adjust leave accrual schedule and holiday schedule, create a hybrid longevity and safety 

annual bonus program, amend the OkMRF Defined Benefit Plan.  For details on these recommendations please 

reference the packet document “Proposed Benefits Modifications and Estimated Expenditures”. 

The Board held a discussion.  Michael Dean expressed some reservation regarding an employee receiving 6 

months service credit for every year of previous full‐time employment. Regarding the longevity and safety 

program Casey Hurt stated he does not favor a longevity driven program; he would rather allocate that to 

safety.  Michael Dean agreed to increase the 30% to safety instead of longevity.   

Resolution to modifications to District benefits and adjustment to the FY 2021 budget category for benefit 

expenditures are approved.  Jann Knotts made a motion seconded by Casey Hurt to approve the Resolution. 

 
Roll call vote: 
 
President Amanda Nairn    Yes 

Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 

Treasurer Jann Knotts      Yes 

Secretary Michael Dean     Yes 

Member William Janacek    Absent 

Member Roger Frech      Absent 

Member Kevin Anders      Yes 

Motion Passed. 

 
 
D.7. Discussion, consideration, and possible vote regarding partial title transfer 
 
President Nairn shared that General Manager, Kyle Arthur met with the three member cities.  He provided 
detailed information and analysis on partial title transfer.  President Nairn stated that Norman is not in favor of 
moving forward, at this time, with partial title transfer.  Ms. Nairn explained if the Board votes to not pursue 
title at this time, it could be up for vote/discussion in the future.  Ms. Nairn also said she wanted to give Board 
Members Frech and Janacek the opportunity to speak if they desired.  Mr. Janacek said he understood that Mr. 
Frech was going to submit a letter on this agenda item and that he would be interested in hearing his opinion.  
Ms. Nairn gave Mr. Frech the opportunity to read his letter he chose to have Ms. Nairn read it for the record.  
Ms. Nairn provided the Board with the letter and read it aloud.  “Dear Amanda, I am writing in response to our 
recent telephone conversation about our December COMCD board meeting.  You informed me that there is an 
agenda item regarding the Board’s position on partial title transfer of the Norman Project.  Because I am unable 
to attend the board meeting, I wanted to state my opinion on this matter, realizing that I will not be able to 
formally vote on the matter due to my absence.  I wish to add that you are unconditionally free to share the 
contents of this letter, either verbatim or as you may wish to summarize it.  If I were present, I would vote “no” 
without hesitation.  I thought our District Manager gave a very thorough, balanced presentation of the pros and 
cons of partial tittle transfer, and I thought his cost analysis was illumination.  I see no compelling reason to go 
ahead with any form of title transfer at this point.  I realize that situations can change in completely unforeseen 
ways, and at some point, in the future it might be in everyone’s best interest to take either partial or full title 
transfer.  I hope the board keeps in mind an important point:  our decision now not to take either partial or full 
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title transfer in no way binds future boards.  All the best to you and the board, Roger Frech.  Ms. Nairn asked Mr. 
Janacek if he had anything to say.  Mr. Janacek stated he was against title transfer from the start, but he did not 
know how the other Midwest City representatives felt since he was unable to attend the city meeting that Mr. 
Arthur held.  Casey Hurt stated that Midwest City came to the same conclusion that there is no benefit to 
transferring of title now.  The District and Bureau of Reclamation have a good working relationship.  Mr. Janacek 
asked if Tourism might have interest in pursing title transfer.  Ms. Nairn stated a meeting took place with Park 
Manager, Susie Snyder.  Present at that meeting were Ms. Nairn, Mr. Hurt and Kyle Arthur.  The meeting was 
positive and productive.  The relationship between Tourism and BOR is advantageous.  Parks has no desire for 
that relationship to end.  Ms. Nairn stated she did not leave the meeting with any concerns.  Mr. Hurt stated he 
thinks the District and Parks are in a good place.  Mr. Dean said in the event Tourism wanted to pursue title 
transfer they would have to go thru the same process that the District did, including notification to all the 
partners.  Mr. Hurt stated there is one caveat around that, Tourism could go to the U.S. Senate or the House to 
avoid the three‐party agreement.  Mr. Anders stated that a unified decision would have to occur.  Ms. Nairn 
stated the District met with Congressman Cole, a couple years ago, he stated he would not support Tourism on 
partial title transfer.  Mr. Dean stated that if a Board wanted to pursue this in the future at least they would not 
have to start from scratch.  Casey made a motion seconded by Michael Dean that the process to obtain title over 
the water supply facilities should not be completed. 
 
Roll call vote: 
 
President Amanda Nairn    Yes 

Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 

Treasurer Jann Knotts      Yes 

Secretary Michael Dean     Yes 

Member William Janacek    Absent 

Member Roger Frech      Absent 

Member Kevin Anders      Yes 

Motion Passed. 

 
 
 
 
D.8. Discussion, consideration, and possible vote to approve Pandemic Attendance Policy for Board Members 
 
Due to the expiration of the emergency amendments to the Open Meeting Act, board meetings are back to 
attending in person.  The District has an attendance rule in the Bylaws. Any Director shall be subject to removal 
from office if missing 3 consecutive meetings or to attend 50% of the regular and/or special meetings within any 
calendar year.  President Nairn stated a Board member should not be penalized for choosing not to attend for 
safety reasons during a pandemic.  The Resolution states:  WHEREAS, a Director who does not choose to attend 
an in‐person meeting of the Board due to health concerns relating to a declared pandemic emergency should 
contact the President of Board or District staff a week before a scheduled Board meeting about the Director’s 
health concerns.  It is hereby resolved that the attendance policy for Board members effective during a 
pandemic declared as an emergency by the Governor is approved.  Casey Hurt made a motion seconded by Jann 
Knotts to accept the Resolution as written.   
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Roll call vote: 
 
President Amanda Nairn    Yes 

Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 

Treasurer Jann Knotts      Yes 

Secretary Michael Dean     Yes 

Member William Janacek    Absent 

Member Roger Frech      Absent 

Member Kevin Anders      Yes 

Motion Passed. 

 

E.9.  Legal Counsel’s Report (written report) 

After the November board meeting, I sent an electronic copy of Senate Bill 661 and the guidance documents 

regarding the emergency amendments to the Open Meeting Act to Kevin Anders. 

On November 9th, I reviewed draft documents relating to the Lake Thunderbird Watershed Partnership and 

attended a Partial Title Transfer presentation by Kyle to Del City officials. 

I also reviewed three legal issues sent by Kyle in preparation for a conference call on November 16th regarding 

possible in‐person meeting locations, the salary schedule and board member attendance. 

On November 17th, I participated by phone with Kyla and Midwest City officials about partial title transfer. 

On November 25th, I provided input into the December 5th meeting agenda language and the resolutions to 

show official action relating to agenda items. 

E.10.  General Manager’s Report 

Please see document titled “Manager’s Report” in the packet. 

The following was not included in the Manager’s Report: Tim Lyon, MWC City Manager, requested Kyle Arthur 

research if the District would be eligible for insurance coverage thru Oklahoma Municipal Insurance Group.  Mr. 

Lyon serves on the Board. Mr. Arthur will consult with the District legal counsel regarding this inquiry.  

 

E.11.  Update on Lake Thunderbird Watershed Alliance‐President Nairn 

The District, in November 2019, wrote a letter in support of the City of Norman’s Bureau of Reclamation 

WaterSMART Cooperative Watershed Management Program Phase I grant application for the development of a 

watershed group for Lake Thunderbird. Carrie Evenson, from City of Norman, applied for the grant. The grant is 

approximately $80,000.  The official name of the new non‐profit is Lake Thunderbird Watershed Alliance.  There 

are two groups involved: A Board, and a technical advisory group. The Board will have at least seven members 

but not to exceed eleven members.  There must be a representative from Midwest City, Del City, Norman, 

Moore and Oklahoma City, a member from the COMCD Board, a member from Recreation, and four at large.  

Amanda Nairn was invited to serve as Norman’s member, although, this does not have to be permanent.  

OWRB, DEQ, and universities will all be involved.  It will serve as a clearing house of information and data on 

Lake Thunderbird. Also, providing opportunity for the Alliance to apply for bigger dollars to benefit Lake 

Thunderbird.  Kyle Arthur is serving on the technical advisory group, as well as builders, developers, landowners, 

stakeholders, advisors, and professors.  A watershed plan will need to be written.  Amanda stated that she will 

keep the COMCD board updated. 
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E.12.  New business (any matter not known prior to the meeting and which could not have been reasonably 

foreseen prior to the posting of the Agenda) None 

 

F.   Adjourn  

There being no further business, President Nairn adjourned the meeting at 9:36 PM.  
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Board of Directors 

Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District 

(the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020.  Professional standards require that we 

provide you with information about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally 

accepted in the United States and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information 

related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in 

our engagement letter to you dated January 24, 2020.  Professional standards also require that we 

communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

 

Significant Audit Matters  

 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  

The significant accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the 

financial statements.  No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of 

existing policies was not changed during the year.  We noted no transactions entered into 

by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 

consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in 

the proper period. 

 

In January 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 84, 

Fiduciary Activities (GASB 84).  GASB 84 improves guidance regarding the recognition 

and reporting of fiduciary activities.  GASB 84 identifies four types of reportable fiduciary 

fund types, including 1) pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds, 2) investment 

trust funds, 3) private-purpose trust funds, and 4) custodial funds.  GASB 84 outlines the 

accounting and disclosure requirements for operating structures that qualify as a fiduciary 

activity.  The District will adopt GASB 84 effective July 1, 2020, for the June 30, 2021, 

reporting year.  The District does not expect GASB 84 to have a significant impact on the 

financial statements. 
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Significant Audit Matters, Continued 

 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices, Continued  

 

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87). GASB 87 defines a 

lease as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial 

asset (the underlying asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange 

or exchange-like transaction. GASB 87 improves accounting and financial reporting for 

leases by governments by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for 

leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 

resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It 

establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that 

leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under GASB 87, a lessee is 

required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor 

is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby 

enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing 

activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning 

after June 15, 2021.  The District does not expect GASB 87 to have a significant impact on 

the financial statements. 

 

In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before 

the End of a Construction Period (GASB 89). GASB 89 directs that interest costs incurred 

during the construction period of an asset be expensed in the period incurred.  GASB 89 

changes previous guidance regarding capitalized construction costs where such costs were 

typically included in the capitalized cost of the asset constructed and depreciated over time.  

The District adopted GASB 89 on July 1, 2019, which did not have a significant impact 

the financial statements. 
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Significant Audit Matters, Continued 

 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices, Continued  

 

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred 

Compensation Plans—an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a 

Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32 (GASB 97). The primary objectives of GASB 97 

are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary 

component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a 

governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board 

typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined 

contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) 

plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee 

benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and 

(3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial 

reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans 

(Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided 

through those plans. The requirements of GASB 97 that 1) exempt primary governments 

that perform the duties that a governing board typically performs from treating the absence 

of a governing board the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board 

in determining whether they are financially accountable for defined contribution pension 

plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or other employee benefit plans and 2) limit the 

applicability of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement 84 to defined 

benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts 

that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3 of Statement 74, 

respectively, are effective at the date of issuance of GASB 97. The requirements of 

GASB 97 that are related to the accounting and financial reporting for Section 457 plans 

are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes of determining 

whether a primary government is financially accountable for a potential component unit, 

the requirements of GASB 97 that provide that for all other arrangements, the absence of 

a governing board be treated the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a 

governing board if the primary government performs the duties that a governing board 

typically would perform, are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. 

Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged and permitted by requirement as 

specified within GASB 97. The District is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption 

of GASB 97 will have on its financial statements.  
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Significant Audit Matters, Continued 

 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices, Continued  

 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 

management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and 

current events and assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are 

particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because 

of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 

expected.  The most significant estimates are the useful lives of capital assets and the fair 

value of investments.  We evaluated and tested the estimates in determining that they were 

reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 

completing our audit. 

 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements 

identified during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them 

to the appropriate level of management.  Management has corrected all such misstatements.  

During our audit we proposed several adjustments to the financial statements. 

 

Disagreements with Management 

 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on a 

financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our 

satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report.  We 

are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

 

Management Representations 

 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 

management representation letter dated December 21, 2020. 
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Significant Audit Matters, Continued 

 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing 

and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a 

consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial 

statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on 

those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check 

with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there 

were no such consultations with other accountants.   

 

Other Audit Matters or Issues 

 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting 

principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the 

District’s auditors.  However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our 

professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

 

Other Matters 

 

We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and 

the required supplementary information that supplements the financial statements. Our 

procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 

information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses 

to our inquiries, the financial statements, and our knowledge we obtained during the audit 

of the financial statements. We did not audit such information and do not express and 

opinion or provide any assurance on such information. 
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Other Required Communications 

 

We as independent auditors are required to: 

 

a. Communicate significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control 

to those charged with governance. 

 

b. Report directly to the audit committee (or equivalent) any fraud that causes a 

material misstatement of the financial statements and any fraud involving senior 

management.  Fraud perpetrated by lower-level employees is also to be reported 

if it resulted in an individually significant misstatement. 

 

c. Report illegal acts or noncompliance with laws or regulations that come to our 

attention (except those that are clearly inconsequential). 

 

We have nothing to report.  

 

Restriction on Use 

 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management 

of the District, and federal and state agencies and is not intended to be, and should not be, 

used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

Sincerely, 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT, CONTINUED 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the District as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in financial position and 

cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require that the management’s discussion 

and analysis on pages I-1 through I-4 and the required supplementary information on pages 28 through 31 

be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the 

basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 

it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 

operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, 

which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 

comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 

financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements.  

We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 

do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 

December 21, 2020, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on 

our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 

and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to solely describe the scope of our testing of internal 

control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  

That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

 

 

 

 

Shawnee, Oklahoma 

December 21, 2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Board of Directors 

Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy 

District (the “District”), which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and 

the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years 

then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; this includes the design, 

implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and 

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the District’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion. 
 

(Continued) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT, CONTINUED 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the District as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in financial position and 

cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require that the management’s discussion 

and analysis on pages I-1 through I-4 and the required supplementary information on pages 28 through 31 

be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the 

basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 

it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 

operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, 

which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 

comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 

financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements.  

We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 

do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 

December 21, 2020, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on 

our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 

and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to solely describe the scope of our testing of internal 

control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  

That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

 

 

 

 

Shawnee, Oklahoma 

December 21, 2020 

 



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 

I-1 

This section of the Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District’s (the “District”) annual financial 

report presents a discussion and analysis of its financial performance for the years ended June 30, 2020 

and 2019.  Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements which follow this section.  The 

following tables summarize the net position and changes in net position of the District for 2020 and 2019.  

 

Statements of Net Position 

 

 2020  2019 

Assets:

  Current assets 3,084,150$          2,789,801            

  Capital assets, net 11,350,852          9,048,555            

  Net pension asset 266,750               296,618               

  Other noncurrent assets 4,344,816            4,269,128            

Total assets 19,046,568          16,404,102          

  Deferred outflows of resources

    related to the pension plan 68,153                 79,548                 

Liabilities:

  Current liabilities 1,113,495            330,257               

  Long-term debt, less current maturities 2,016,356            615,230               

Total liabilities 3,129,851            945,487               

  Deferred inflows of resources

    related to the pension plan 94,117                 142,058               

Net position:

  Invested in capital assets, net 9,196,144            8,338,899            

  Restricted 50,000                 50,000                 

  Unrestricted 6,644,609            7,007,206            

Total net position 15,890,753$        15,396,105          

June 30,

 



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED 

 

 

I-2 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 

 2020  2019 

Operating revenues:

  Operations and maintenance 1,737,662$          2,011,380            

  Electric power 484,429               456,759               

Total operating revenues 2,222,091            2,468,139            

Operating expenses:

  Pumping power 484,429               456,759               

  Salaries and benefits 595,501               473,160               

  Other operating expenses 813,116               891,908               

Total operating expenses 1,893,046            1,821,827            

Operating income 329,045               646,312               

Non-operating revenue 165,603               234,194               

Changes in net position 494,648               880,506               

Net position, beginning of year 15,396,105          14,515,599          

Net position, end of year 15,890,753$        15,396,105          

Years Ended June 30,

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 

The three financial statements are as follows: 
 

• Statement of Net Position—This statement presents information reflecting the District’s assets, 

deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position.  Net 

position represents the amount of total assets, deferred outflows of resources, less total deferred 

inflows of resources, and liabilities.  The statement of net position is categorized as to current 

and noncurrent assets and liabilities.  For purposes of the financial statements, current assets 

and liabilities are those assets and liabilities with immediate liquidity or which are collectible 

or becoming due within 12 months of the statement date.   
 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position—This statement reflects the 

operating revenues and expenses, as well as non-operating revenues and expenses, during the 

fiscal year.  Major sources of operating revenues are operations and maintenance, and electric 

power revenue; and major sources of operating expenses are salaries and benefits, and pumping 

power expense.  Major sources of non-operating income are from investment and interest 

income.  The change in net position for an enterprise fund is the equivalent of net profit or loss 

for any other business enterprise. 



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED 

 

 

I-3 

Overview of the Financial Statements, Continued 

 

• Statement of Cash Flows—The statement of cash flows is presented using the direct method 

of reporting which reflects cash flows from operating, capital and related financing, and 

investing activities.  Cash collections and payments are reflected in this statement to arrive at 

the net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the fiscal year. 

 

Financial Highlights 

 

• The decrease in total operating revenues of approximately $246,000 in 2020 compared to the 

prior year was primarily due to $248,000 of operations and maintenance assessment 

adjustments to member cities for temporary financial relief due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

The decrease in total operating revenues of approximately $213,000 in 2019 compared to the 

prior year was due to decreased operations and maintenance revenues and electric power 

revenue.     

 

• The increase in total operating expenses of approximately $71,000 in 2020 compared to the 

prior year was due primarily to an increase in salaries and benefits of approximately $123,000 

and pumping power of approximately $27,000, offset by a decrease in maintenance of 

approximately $51,000 and professional services of approximately $21,000.  The decrease in 

total operating expenses of approximately $105,000 in 2019 compared to the prior year was 

due primarily to a decrease in pumping power.   

 

• Total non-operating revenues decreased approximately $68,000 in 2020 compared to the prior 

year, mainly resulting from a decrease in investment and interest income of approximately 

$82,000 and a decrease in gain on sale fixed assets of approximately $20,000, offset by a 

decrease in shoreline stabilization expense of $39,000.  Total non-operating revenues increased 

approximately $385,000 in 2019 compared to the prior year, mainly resulting from an increase 

in investment and interest income of approximately $267,000, an increase in grant revenues of 

approximately $39,000, a gain on sale of fixed assets of approximately $34,000, and an 

increase in other revenues of approximately $84,000, offset by an increase in shoreline 

stabilization expense of approximately $122,000 and a decrease of water reuse study expense 

of approximately $83,000.   

 

• During 2020, the District’s net pension asset was approximately $267,000, deferred outflows 

of resources approximated $68,000, and deferred inflows of resources approximated $94,000.  

During 2019, the District’s net pension asset was approximately $297,000, deferred outflows 

of resources approximated $80,000, and deferred inflows of resources approximated $142,000.     



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED 
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Capital Assets 

 

As of June 30, 2020, the District had invested approximately $20,675,000 in capital assets, including dam 

and reservoir, land improvements, construction in progress, pipelines, pumping plant, buildings and 

structures, vehicles, equipment, and construction in progress.  Net of accumulated depreciation, the 

District’s net capital assets at June 30, 2020, approximated $11,351,000.  As of June 30, 2019, the District 

had invested approximately $18,014,000 in capital assets, including dam and reservoir, land 

improvements, construction in progress, pipelines, pumping plant, buildings and structures, vehicles, and 

equipment.  Net of accumulated depreciation, the District’s net capital assets at June 30, 2019, 

approximated $9,049,000.  Additional details concerning the District’s capital assets can be found in the 

financial statements (see Note 3).   

 

The District’s infrastructure assets, which are reported using the modified approach for depreciation, 

consisted of dam and reservoir related assets.  The infrastructure assets are typically required to have 

annual condition assessments performed by the U.S. Department of the Interior’s Bureau of Reclamation.  

The condition assessment assigned to the assets was 99 in each of the last two issued assessment reports.  

A rating of 80 or greater is considered to be a “Good” rating.  The District’s objective is to maintain a 

“Good” condition assessment rating. 

 

Debt Administration 

 

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District had notes payable of approximately $2,155,000 and $710,000, 

respectively, with the Oklahoma Water Resources Board.   

  

Additional details concerning the District’s long-term debt can be found in the financial statements 

(see Note 4). 

 

Contacting the District’s Management 

 

This financial report is designed to provide patrons and interested parties with a general overview of the 

District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for its finances.  If you have questions 

about this report or need additional financial information, contact: 

 

Kyle Arthur, General Manager 

Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District 

12500 Alameda Drive 

Norman, OK  73026 

Telephone:  405-329-5228 

 



 

See Independent Auditors’ Report. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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June 30, 2020 2019

    Assets

Current assets:

  Cash and cash equivalents 2,590,564$          2,098,219            

  Grants receivable 32,500                 -                           

  Assessments receivable—the Cities—Energy Project,

    current portion 64,567                 64,570                 

  Accounts receivable 372,048               605,919               

  Accrued interest receivable 24,471                 21,093                 

Total current assets 3,084,150            2,789,801            

Noncurrent assets:

  Assessments receivable—the Cities—Energy Project 520,802               615,230               

  Investments 3,779,237            3,607,898            

  Debt issuance costs 44,777                 46,000                 

  Net pension asset 266,750               296,618               

  Capital assets, net 11,350,852          9,048,555            

Total noncurrent assets 15,962,418          13,614,301          

Total assets 19,046,568          16,404,102          

Deferred outflows of resources:

  Deferred amounts related to the pension plan 68,153                 79,548                 

(Continued)

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

 
 

  



 

See Independent Auditors’ Report. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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June 30, 2020 2019

    Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:

  Accounts payable 957,095               216,666               

  Compensated absences payable 17,151                 18,130                 

  Accrued interest payable 897                      1,035                   

  Long-term debt, current portion 138,352               94,426                 

Total current liabilities 1,113,495            330,257               

Noncurrent liabilities:

  Long-term debt, less current maturities 2,016,356            615,230               

Total liabilities 3,129,851            945,487               

Deferred inflows of resources:

  Deferred amounts related to the pension plan 94,117                 142,058               

Net position:

  Invested in capital assets, net 9,196,144            8,338,899            

  Restricted 50,000                 50,000                 

  Unrestricted 6,644,609            7,007,206            

Total net position 15,890,753$        15,396,105          

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION, CONTINUED

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

 
 
  



 

See Independent Auditors’ Report. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Years Ended June 30, 2020 2019

Operating revenues:

  Operations and maintenance 1,737,662$          2,011,380            

  Electric power 484,429               456,759               

Total operating revenues 2,222,091            2,468,139            

  

Operating expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 595,501               473,160               

  Maintenance 124,069               174,960               

  Utilities 37,663                 31,017                 

  Insurance and bond 66,146                 62,894                 

  Administrative supplies 16,347                 21,934                 

  Professional services 43,380                 63,656                 

  Pumping power 484,429               456,759               

  Water monitoring 133,377               144,974               

  Depreciation 392,134               392,473               

Total operating expenses 1,893,046            1,821,827            

Operating income 329,045               646,312               

Non-operating revenues and (expenses):

  Grant revenue 32,500                 39,466                 

  Investment and interest income 204,668               286,513               

  Gain on sale of fixed assets 14,427                 33,831                 

  Interest expense (11,639)                (3,764)                  

  Shoreline stabilization expense (83,221)                (121,989)              

  Other, net 8,868                   137                      

Net non-operating revenues 165,603               234,194               

Changes in net position 494,648               880,506               

Net position, beginning of year 15,396,105          14,515,599          

Net position, end of year 15,890,753$        15,396,105          

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

 
 

  



 

See Independent Auditors’ Report. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Years Ended June 30, 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Cash received from assessments to the Cities 2,455,962$          2,547,095            

  Cash payments for goods and services (164,982)              (913,194)              

  Cash payments for salaries and benefits (603,159)              (556,408)              

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,687,821            1,077,493            

Cash flows from capital, noncapital, and 

  related financing activities:

    Acquisition and development of capital assets (2,751,103)           (201,241)              

    Proceeds from sale of capital assets 71,099                 33,831                 

    Proceeds from long-term debt 1,539,477            -                           

    Repayment of debt obligations (94,426)                (94,361)                

    Interest paid (10,554)                (3,902)                  

 Shoreline stabilization (83,221)                (121,989)              

    Other, net 5,492                   (6,397)                  

Net cash used in capital, noncapital, and

  related financing activities (1,323,236)           (394,059)              

Cash flows from investing activities:

  Principal received on assessments receivable 94,431                 100,151               

  Investment and interest income received 148,879               153,352               

  Purchase of investments (1,018,124)           (569,884)              

  Redemption of investments 902,574               500,000               

Net cash provided by investing activities 127,760               183,619               

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 492,345               867,053               

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,098,219            1,231,166            

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,590,564$          2,098,219            

(Continued)

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Years Ended June 30, 2020 2019

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash

  provided by operating activities:

    Operating income 329,045$             646,312               

    Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 

      net cash provided by operating activities:

        Depreciation 392,134               392,473               

        Changes in deferred amounts related to pensions (36,547)                137,551               

        Change in operating assets and liabilities:

          Accounts receivable 233,871               78,956                 

          Net pension asset 29,868                 (220,829)              

          Accounts payable 740,429               42,998                 

          Compensated absences payable (979)                     32                        

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,687,821$          1,077,493            

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

June 30, 2020 and 2019 
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

Organization and Nature of Operations 

 

The Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District (the “District”) is a governmental 

organization established pursuant to Oklahoma Statute by order of the Cleveland County District 

Court entered on September 30, 1959.  Its primary purpose is to distribute raw water from Lake 

Thunderbird to the cities of Del City, Midwest City, and Norman (collectively, the “Cities”) for 

municipal, domestic, and industrial use.  The District manages and operates the dam, facilities, 

land, and rights of way under an agreement with the United States.  The District also provides 

flood control, fish and wildlife benefits, and recreational opportunities.  The District was obligated 

to repay the United States for a portion of the construction cost (considered to be cost related to 

municipal and industrial water supply), with interest, for which it assessed the member cities 

annually based on a stated formula.  The members of the District’s Board of Directors are 

nominated by the Cities and appointed by the Cleveland County District Court. 

 

Reporting Entity 

 

The financial statements presented herein include only the operations of the District and do not 

include the assets, liabilities, or results of operations of the Cities serviced. 

 

Basis of Accounting 

 

The District prepares its financial statements on the enterprise fund basis using the economic 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when earned 

and expenses are recognized when the obligation is incurred. 

 

Financial Statement Presentations 

 

The District follows the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 

No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and 

Local Governments (GASB 34), in preparing its financial statements. 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments 

with an original maturity of 3 months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 
 



CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 

 

Investments 

 

The District’s investments are recorded at fair value. 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States establish a fair value hierarchy for 

determination and measurement of fair value.  The hierarchy is based on the type of valuation 

inputs needed to measure the fair value of an asset.  The hierarchy is generally as follows:  

 

Level 1—unadjusted quoted prices in active market, for identical assets. 

 

Level 2—quoted prices for similar assets or inputs that are observable or other forms of 

market corroborated inputs. 

 

Level 3—pricing based on best available information including primarily unobservable 

inputs and assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. 
 

In addition to the above three levels, if an investment does not have a readily determined fair value, 

the investment can be measured using net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent).  

Investments valued at NAV are categorized as NAV and not listed as Level 1, 2, or 3. 

 

Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets are stated at cost and depreciated on the date they are placed into service.  

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 

assets.  The estimated useful lives are 20–25 years for buildings and structures, pumping plant, 

and pipelines; 7 years for vehicles and office equipment; and 20 years for the Energy Project 

equipment (a $2,400,000 energy savings construction project) and fencing and equipment.   

 

The District considers the dam and reservoir related assets to be infrastructure assets, which are 

reported using the modified approach for depreciation.  Under the modified approach, 

infrastructure assets are not required to be depreciated as long as certain requirements, as defined 

by GASB 34, are met.  All expenditures made for infrastructure assets, using the modified 

approach, are expensed in the period incurred, except for expenditures considered to be for 

additions or improvements. 

 

Intangible Assets 

 

The District believes its only intangible assets consist of certain rights of way, all of which were 

received prior to July 2009.  Since the District is considered to be a Phase 3 government under 

GASB 34, the District is not required to retroactively apply GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting 

and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets.  Therefore, the District has not accounted for and 

reported its right-of-way intangible assets. 



CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 

Compensated Absences 
 

The District’s employees can accrue a maximum of 360 hours of vacation pay.  Upon termination, 

accrued, unpaid hours will be paid at the employee’s hourly rate then in effect.  Sick leave can be 

accrued at a rate of 12 days per year (8 hours for every full month of service), but is not paid upon 

termination. 
 

Income Taxes 
 

Because the District is a governmental institution pursuant to Title 82, Chapter 5 of the Oklahoma 

Statutes, as amended, the District is exempt from federal and state income taxes. 
 

Concentrations 
 

The District is located in Norman, Oklahoma, and serves the Cities and, therefore, is reliant on the 

Cities’ ability to meet their obligations. 
 

Contingencies 
 

The District carries appropriate insurance with regard to comprehensive general liability, 

comprehensive automobile liability, personal injury, general property, and workers’ compensation 

insurance. 
 

Equity Classifications 
 

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 
 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net—Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation, less the balance of debt incurred to finance the acquisition, construction, or 

improvement of the related capital assets. 
 

Restricted—Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by i) external 

groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 

governments or ii) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 

Unrestricted—Consists of all other net position that do not meet the definition of 

“Invested in Capital Assets, Net” or “Restricted.” 
 

Revenues 
 

The District considers all assessments charged to the Cities to fund its normal operations as 

operating revenues.  Assessments to the Cities to fund capital or special projects, and grants or 

other contracts received from federal and state agencies, are considered to be non-operating 

income. 
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 

 

Federal Grant Revenues and Expenditures 

 

The District’s federal grant revenues are primarily expenditure driven, in that prior to requesting 

grant monies, expenditures are incurred. 

 

Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements 

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 

the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 

reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

 

For the purposes of measuring the net pension (asset) liability, deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the 

fiduciary net position of the Employee Retirement System of Central Oklahoma Master 

Conservancy District (the “Plan”) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net 

position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Oklahoma Municipal 

Retirement Fund (OkMRF).  For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and 

payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value based on 

published market prices.  Detailed information about the OkMRF plan’s fiduciary net position is 

available in the separately issued OkMRF financial report. 

 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

 

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities (GASB 84).  GASB 84 

improves guidance regarding the recognition and reporting of fiduciary activities.  GASB 84 

identifies four types of reportable fiduciary fund types, including 1) pension (and other employee 

benefit) trust funds, 2) investment trust funds, 3) private-purpose trust funds, and 4) custodial 

funds.  GASB 84 outlines the accounting and disclosure requirements for operating structures that 

qualify as a fiduciary activity.  The District will adopt GASB 84 effective July 1, 2020, for the 

June 30, 2021, reporting year.  The District does not expect GASB 84 to have a significant impact 

on the financial statements. 
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 

 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements, Continued 

 

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87). GASB 87 defines a lease as a 

contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset (the underlying 

asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. 

GASB 87 improves accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments by requiring 

recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as 

operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the 

payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the 

foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under 

GASB 87, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease 

asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, 

thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing 

activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 

June 15, 2021.  The District does not expect GASB 87 to have a significant impact on the financial 

statements. 

 

In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the 

End of a Construction Period (GASB 89). GASB 89 directs that interest costs incurred during the 

construction period of an asset be expensed in the period incurred.  GASB 89 changes previous 

guidance regarding capitalized construction costs where such costs were typically included in the 

capitalized cost of the asset constructed and depreciated over time.  The District adopted GASB 89 

on July 1, 2019, which did not have a significant impact the financial statements. 
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 

 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements, Continued 

 

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting 

and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—

an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement 

No. 32 (GASB 97). The primary objectives of GASB 97 are to (1) increase consistency and 

comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a 

potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary government performs 

the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the 

reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other 

postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or 

OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund 

financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the 

accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred 

compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits 

provided through those plans. The requirements of GASB 97 that 1) exempt primary governments 

that perform the duties that a governing board typically performs from treating the absence of a 

governing board the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board in 

determining whether they are financially accountable for defined contribution pension plans, 

defined contribution OPEB plans, or other employee benefit plans and 2) limit the applicability of 

the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement 84 to defined benefit pension plans and 

defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the criteria in 

paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3 of Statement 74, respectively, are effective at the date 

of issuance of GASB 97. The requirements of GASB 97 that are related to the accounting and 

financial reporting for Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after 

June 15, 2021. For purposes of determining whether a primary government is financially 

accountable for a potential component unit, the requirements of GASB 97 that provide that for all 

other arrangements, the absence of a governing board be treated the same as the appointment of a 

voting majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the duties that a 

governing board typically would perform, are effective for reporting periods beginning after 

June 15, 2021. Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged and permitted by 

requirement as specified within GASB 97. The District is currently evaluating the impact that the 

adoption of GASB 97 will have on its financial statements.  

 

Date of Management’s Review of Subsequent Events 

 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 21, 2020, the date which the 

financial statements were available to be issued.  
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(2) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Custodial Credit Risk—Deposits  
 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not 

be returned to it.  The District’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk is described as follows: 
 

The District requires that balances on deposit with financial institutions be insured by the 

FDIC or collateralized by securities held by the cognizant Federal Reserve Bank, or be 

invested in U.S. government obligations in the District’s name. 
 

Custodial Credit Risk—Investments 
 

As of June 30, 2020, the District held cash deposits of approximately $2,072,000 in a money 

market account that is not insured by the FDIC.  As of June 30, 2019, the District held cash deposits 

of approximately $1,815,000 in a money market account that is not insured by the FDIC.  This 

investment is not considered to be a custodial credit risk since the money market is invested in 

U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. government agency securities.  The money market account had 

an S&P rating of AAA at both June 30, 2020 and 2019, and an average maturity of the underlying 

investments of 39 days as of both June 30, 2020 and 2019.  At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District 

did not have any money in money market accounts that were not fully insured by the FDIC or 

collateralized.  The money market accounts are included in cash and cash equivalents on the 

statements of net position.  The underlying investments of the money market accounts include 

short-term, high quality, fixed-income securities issued by banks, corporations, and the 

U.S. government or its agencies. 
 

Investments are made under the custody of the General Manager, as approved by the District’s 

Board of Directors, in accordance with the District’s investment policy. 
 

The investment policy permits investments in U.S. Treasury bills, notes, and bonds and obligations 

fully insured or unconditionally guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies or 

instrumentalities; U.S. government agency securities; corporate debt and mortgage-backed pass-

through securities with ratings of Aaa, AAA, or the equivalent; collateralized or insured certificates 

of deposit; bankers’ acceptances; commercial paper with a rating of at least A-1 or the equivalent; 

obligations of state and local governments; money market and short-term bond funds with a rating 

of AAA or equivalent; and obligations of a foreign government with a rating of A-1 or the 

equivalent. 
 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the District will 

not be able to recover the value of its investments.  Investment securities are exposed to custodial 

risk if they are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the District, or are held by a counterparty 

or the counterparty’s trust department but not in the name of the District.  At June 30, 2020 and 

2019, the investment balances of approximately $3,779,000 and $3,608,000, respectively, were 

uncollateralized.   
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(2) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED 

 

Interest Rate Risk and Credit Risk 

 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 

investment.  Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest 

changes.  The District does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities as a means of 

managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  Fixed-income 

securities are subject to credit risk.  The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest 

in any one issuer.  Credit quality rating is one method of assessing the ability of the issuer to meet 

its obligation.  The following tables provide information concerning interest rate risk and credit risk. 

 

At June 30, the District had the following investments and maturities: 

 

1 or More,

Investment Type Less Than 1 Less Than 5 5 or More Fair Value

 2020 

Corporate bonds—domestic -$                 1,625,980    1,922,857    3,548,837    

Corporate bonds—foreign -                   230,400       -                   230,400       

-$                 1,856,380    1,922,857    3,779,237    

 2019 

Corporate bonds—domestic -$                 1,272,463    1,967,064    3,239,527    

Corporate bonds—foreign -                   218,371       -                   218,371       

Mortgage-backed securities -                   150,000       -                   150,000       

-$                 1,640,834    1,967,064    3,607,898    

Investment Maturities (in Years)

 
 



CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED 

 

 

See Independent Auditors’ Report. 

 

- 16 - 

(2) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED 
 

Interest Rate Risk and Credit Risk, Continued 
 

The following table provides information concerning credit risk at June 30, 2020: 
 

S&P 500 Rating Fair Value

Percentage of 

Total

Fixed Income

Investments at

Fair Value

AAA 283,662$             8%

AA- 146,207               4%

A 181,633               5%

A- 1,054,197            28%

BBB+ 729,282               19%

BBB 566,433               15%

BBB- 587,423               15%

BB 230,400               6%

3,779,237$          100%

 
The following table provides information concerning credit risk at June 30, 2019: 
 

S&P 500 Rating Fair Value

Percentage of 

Total

Fixed Income

Investments at

Fair Value

AAA 253,609$             7%

AA+ 150,000               4%

AA 139,224               4%

A+ 251,693               7%

A 175,521               5%

A- 539,350               15%

BBB+ 1,063,908            29%

BBB 816,222               23%

BB 218,371               6%

3,607,898$          100%
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(2) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED 

 

Investments Measured at Fair Value 

 

Fair values of investments by hierarchy level are presented below: 

 

Amounts

Measured at

Fair Value

Quoted 

Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical

Assets

(Level 1)

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

(Level 3)

Investments by 

Fair Value Level

 June 30, 2020 

  Corporate bonds—domestic 3,548,837$    -                 3,548,837  -                     

  Corporate bonds—foreign 230,400         -                 230,400     -                     

3,779,237$    -                 3,779,237  -                     

 June 30, 2019 

  Corporate bonds—domestic 3,239,527$    -                 3,239,527  -                     

  Corporate bonds—foreign 218,371         -                 218,371     -                     

  Mortgage-backed securities 150,000         -                 150,000     -                     

3,607,898$    -                 3,607,898  -                     

 
The District holds a diversified mix of debt instruments through an investment manager.  

Generally, the District holds a mix of domestic and foreign corporate bonds and mortgage-backed 

securities.  The District’s debt securities are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, valued 

using a matrix pricing technique determined by a third party.  This method values securities based 

on their relationship to benchmark quoted prices.   
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(3) CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

Following are the changes in capital assets for the years ended June 30: 

 

Balance at

June 30, 2019 Additions Retirements Transfers

Balance at

June 30, 2020

Capital assets not 

  being depreciated:

    Dam and reservoir 4,605,177$    -                -               -             4,605,177      

    Land improvements 38,375           -                -               -             38,375           

    Construction in progress:  

      Del City pipeline 

        replacement 498,941         2,574,597 -               -             3,073,538      

Total capital assets 

  not being depreciated 5,142,493      2,574,597 -               -             7,717,090      

Other capital assets:

  Vehicles 679,813         55,110      -               -             734,923         

  Pipelines 4,269,079      -                -               -             4,269,079      

  Pumping plant 1,593,952      -                -               -             1,593,952      

  Office equipment 92,020           6,985        -               -             99,005           

  Buildings and structures 1,222,254      -                -               -             1,222,254      

  Energy Project equipment 2,536,613      -                -               -             2,536,613      

  Fencing and equipment 2,478,016      114,411    (90,674)    -             2,501,753      

Total other capital 

  assets 12,871,747    176,506    (90,674)    -             12,957,579    

Accumulated depreciation:

  Vehicles (460,632)        (54,078)     -               -             (514,710)        

  Pipelines (3,638,948)     (42,727)     -               -             (3,681,675)     

  Pumping plant (1,566,864)     (2,356)       -               -             (1,569,220)     

  Office equipment (88,824)          (2,462)       -               -             (91,286)          

  Buildings and structures (515,798)        (46,335)     -               -             (562,133)        

  Energy Project equipment (1,268,309)     (126,831)   -               -             (1,395,140)     

  Fencing and equipment (1,426,310)     (117,345)   34,002     -             (1,509,653)     

Total accumulated 

  depreciation (8,965,685)     (392,134)   34,002     -             (9,323,817)     

Capital assets, net 9,048,555$    2,358,969 (56,672)    -             11,350,852    
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(3) CAPITAL ASSETS, CONTINUED 

 

Balance at

June 30, 2018 Additions Retirements Transfers

Balance at

June 30, 2019

Capital assets not 

  being depreciated:

    Dam and reservoir 4,605,177$    -                -               -             4,605,177      

    Land improvements 38,375           -                -               -             38,375           

    Construction in progress:  

      Del City pipeline 

        replacement 401,701         97,240      -               -             498,941         

Total capital assets 

  not being depreciated 5,045,253      97,240      -               -             5,142,493      

Other capital assets:

  Vehicles 670,546         74,224      (64,957)    -             679,813         

  Pipelines 4,269,079      -                -               -             4,269,079      

  Pumping plant 1,593,952      -                -               -             1,593,952      

  Office equipment 89,192           2,828        -               -             92,020           

  Buildings and structures 1,222,254      -                -               -             1,222,254      

  Energy Project equipment 2,536,613      -                -               -             2,536,613      

  Fencing and equipment 2,467,347      26,948      (16,279)    -             2,478,016      

Total other capital 

  assets 12,848,983    104,000    (81,236)    -             12,871,747    

Accumulated depreciation:

  Vehicles (470,698)        (54,891)     64,957     -             (460,632)        

  Pipelines (3,596,221)     (42,727)     -               -             (3,638,948)     

  Pumping plant (1,564,508)     (2,356)       -               -             (1,566,864)     

  Office equipment (87,716)          (1,108)       -               -             (88,824)          

  Buildings and structures (469,463)        (46,335)     -               -             (515,798)        

  Energy Project equipment (1,141,478)     (126,831)   -               -             (1,268,309)     

  Fencing and equipment (1,324,363)     (118,226)   16,279     -             (1,426,310)     

Total accumulated 

  depreciation (8,654,447)     (392,474)   81,236     -             (8,965,685)     

Capital assets, net 9,239,789$    (191,234)   -               -             9,048,555      
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(4) LONG-TERM DEBT 

 

Long-term debt activity for the years ended June 30 was as follows: 

 

Balance at

June 30, 2019 Additions Reductions

Balance at

June 30, 2020

Amounts

Due

Within

1 Year

Drinking Water 

  SRF Series 2007 

  note payable 709,656$       -                 (94,426)       615,230        94,428       

Drinking Water 

  SRF Series 2019 

  note payable -                     1,539,478  -                  1,539,478     43,924       

709,656$       1,539,478  (94,426)       2,154,708     138,352     

 

Balance at

June 30, 2018 Additions Reductions

Balance at

June 30, 2019

Amounts

Due

Within

1 Year

Drinking Water 

  SRF Series 2007

  note payable 804,017$       -                 (94,361)       709,656        94,426       

  
Drinking Water SRF Series 2007 Note Payable 

 

The District has a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Series 2007 note payable from 

the Oklahoma Water Resources Board through its “Drinking Water SRF Financing Program.”  

The Drinking Water SRF Series 2007 note payable has an annual interest rate of 0.50%, 

matures on September 15, 2026, and is secured by the District’s revenues.  Semiannual 

interest and principal payments are due on March 15 and September 15.  The note has certain 

financial, restrictive, and negative covenants that the District must meet.  As of June 30, 2020, 

the District was in compliance with such covenants. 
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(4) LONG-TERM DEBT, CONTINUED 

 

Drinking Water SRF Series 2019 Note Payable 

 

In July 2019, the District entered into a $5,643,680 Drinking Water SRF Series 2019 note 

payable agreement with the Oklahoma Water Resources Board through its “Drinking Water 

SRF Financing Program” to finance its Del City aqueduct replacement.  The Drinking Water 

SRF Series 2019 note payable has an annual interest rate of 1.60% and an annual fee of 0.50% 

through maturity, which is the earlier of i) either the earlier of March 15 or September 15 

preceding 15 years after the completion of the construction project or ii) September 15, 2035.  

As of June 30, the District had borrowed $1,539,477 on the note.  The Drinking Water SRF 

Series 2019 note payable has certain financial, restrictive, and negative covenants that the 

District must meet.  As of June 30, 2020, the District was in compliance with such covenants. 

 

Future payments of principal and interest of the District’s long-term debt for the next 5 years and 

to maturity are as follows: 

Year Total Interest Principal

2021 157,475$             19,123                 138,352               

2022 217,147               33,427                 183,720               

2023 216,745               31,070                 185,675               

2024 216,377               28,673                 187,704               

2025 215,991               26,236                 189,755               

2026–2035 1,404,928            135,426               1,269,502            

2,428,663$          273,955               2,154,708            

 
(5) ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE 

 

In connection with the District’s Energy Project, the District entered into contracts with the City 

of Norman and the City of Del City, in which the two cities agreed to repay their share of the note 

payable related to the project through an assessment receivable.  The assessments mirror the terms 

of the Drinking Water SRF Series 2007 note payable.  See Note 4 for the respective terms.  The 

assessments are secured by gross revenues received from the sale of water by the respective cities.  

The balance of the assessments receivable for the Energy Project at June 30, 2020 and 2019, was 

$585,369 and $679,800, respectively. 
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(6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

 

Plan Description 

 

The District participates in OkMRF, an agent multiple public employer retirement system (PERS) 

defined benefit pension plan.  The Plan provides pensions for all regular, full-time employees.  The 

OkMRF plan issues a separate financial report and can be obtained from OkMRF or from their 

website:  https://www.okmrf.org/financial.  PERS is a retirement system that provides benefits to 

employees of one or more state or local governmental entities.  An agent PERS maintains pooled 

administrative and investment functions for all participating entities.  The authority to establish and 

amend the benefit provisions of the plans that participate in the OkMRF is assigned to the respective 

employer entities, which is the District’s Board of Directors.  Actuarial valuations are performed 

each year on July 1.  

 

Benefits Provided 

 

The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.  Retirement benefits for employees are 

calculated as 3% of the employee’s average 5 highest consecutive years of salaries out of the last 

10 years of service multiplied by the number of years of credited service.  Employees with 10 or 

more years of vesting service can retire at the age of 65 or at the age of 55 with 80 points.  Points are 

equal to age plus completed years of service.  The Plan allows for early retirement at the age of 55 

with 10 years of vested service.  The early retirement benefit is the normal retirement benefit reduced 

5% per year for commencement prior to the normal retirement age.  All employees are eligible for 

disability benefits after 10 or more years of service.  Disability benefits are determined in the same 

manner as normal retirement benefits and are payable upon disablement without an actuarial 

reduction for early payment.  In-service death benefits equal 50% of the normal retirement benefit 

payable to the spouse until death or remarriage, or 50% of the normal retirement benefit payable to 

the elected beneficiary for 5 years certain (for non-married employees).  An employee who deceases 

or terminates service with the District prior to vesting may withdraw his or her contributions, plus 

any accumulated interest.  

 

Benefit terms provide for annual cost-of-living adjustments to each employee’s retirement 

allowance subsequent to the employee’s retirement date.  Benefits in payments status are adjusted 

each July 1 based on the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index, limited to a maximum 

increase or decrease in any year of 3%.  

 

The Plan allows for normal and optional forms of benefit payments.  The normal form of payment 

is a monthly lifetime annuity with 5 years certain.  Disability retirement benefits are paid only 

under the normal form.  Optional forms of payment consist of jointed and 50% survivor annuity, 

joint and 66⅔% last survivor annuity, and joint and 100% survivor annuity.   

  

https://www.okmrf.org/financial
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(6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED 

 

Employees Covered Under the Plan 

 

At June 30 the following employees were covered under the Plan: 

 

 2020  2019 

Retirees, disabled participants, and beneficiaries

  currently receiving benefits 3                          3                          

Terminated vested participants 1                          1                          

Active participants 6                          6                          

10                        10                        

 
Contributions 

 

The District’s Board of Directors has the authority to set and amend contribution rates to the Plan.  

Participating employees contribute 6% of their annual compensation to the Plan.  The District’s 

contribution rates for fiscal years 2020 and 2019 were based on actuarially determined rates plus 

additional contributions.  The rates for the fiscal years 2020 and 2019 were 2.87% and 9.52%, 

respectively, of covered salary.  The District contributed $9,342 and $25,902 in employer 

contributions to the Plan in 2020 and 2019, respectively.  

 

Total and Net Pension (Asset) Liability 

 

The total pension (asset) liability as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, was determined based on actuarial 

valuations performed as of July 1, 2019, and July 1, 2018, respectively, which is also the 

measurement date.  There were no changes in assumptions or changes in benefit terms that 

significantly affected measurement of the total pension (asset) liability as of June 30, 2020 or 2019.  

There were also no changes between the measurement date of July 1, 2019 and 2018, and the 

District’s report ending date of June 30, 2020 and 2019, that would have a significant impact on 

the net pension (asset) liability as of June 30, 2020 or 2019. 
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(6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED 
 

Actuarial Assumptions 
 

The total pension (asset) liability as of the July 1, 2019 and 2018, actuarial valuation was 

determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 

measurement: 

 

Investment return and 

  discount rate:

7.50% for both 2019 and 2018, compounded

  annually net of investment expense and 

  including inflation

Salary increases:
Varies between 4.50% to 7.50% for 

  both 2019 and 2018

Mortality rates: UP-1994 Mortality Table with projected mortality

  improvement by the Scale AA based on the 

  employee's year of birth for both 2019 and 2018

Assumed inflation rate: 2.75% for both 2019 and 2018

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal for both 2019 and 2018

 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 and 2018, valuations are based on the results 

of the actuarial experience study, which covers the 5-year period ending June 30, 2016.  The 

experience study report is dated September 29, 2017.  

 

Discount Rate 

 

The discount rate used to value benefits was the long-term expected rate of return on plan 

investments of 7.50% as of both July 1, 2019 and 2018, since the Plan’s net fiduciary position is 

projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments.   

 

The District has adopted a funding method that is designed to fund all benefits payable to 

participants over the course of their working careers.  Any differences between actual and expected 

experience are funded over a fixed period to ensure all funds necessary to pay benefits have been 

contributed to the trust before those benefits are payable.  Thus, the sufficiency of pension plan 

assets was made without a separate projection of cash flows. 
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(6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED 

 

Discount Rate, Continued 

 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 

building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 

(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each 

major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 

weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 

adding expected inflation (2.75% for 2019 and 2018).  Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 

return for each major asset class included in the Plan’s target asset allocation as of both 

July 1, 2019 and 2018, are summarized in the following table: 

 

Asset Class

Target 

Allocation

Long-Term

Expected Real

Rate of Return

Weighted 

Return

Large cap stocks:

  S&P 500 25% 5.80% 1.45%

Small/Mid cap stocks:

  Russell 2500 10% 6.40% 0.64%

Long/Short equity:

  MSCI ACWI 10% 5.00% 0.50%

International stocks:

  MSCI EAFE 20% 6.20% 1.24%

Fixed income bonds:

  Barclay's Capital Aggregate 30% 2.30% 0.69%

Real estate:

  NCREIF 5% 4.60% 0.23%

Cash and cash equivalents:

  3-month Treasury 0% 0.00% 0.00%

Total 100%

Average real return 4.75%

Inflation 2.75%

Long-term expected return 7.50%
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(6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED 
 

Changes in the Net Pension (Asset) Liability 
 

Changes in the net pension (asset) liability were as follows: 
 

Total Pension

Liability

(a)               

Plan Fiduciary

Net Position

(b)

Net Pension

(Asset) Liability

(a) - (b)

Balance at June 30, 2018 1,574,459$          1,650,248            (75,789)                

Changes for the year:

  Service cost 44,582                 -                           44,582                 

  Interest cost 115,478               -                           115,478               

  Difference between expected and 

    actual experience (124,141)              -                           (124,141)              

  Contributions—employer -                           115,860               (115,860)              

  Contributions—employee -                           19,304                 (19,304)                

  Net investment income -                           125,115               (125,115)              

  Benefit payments, including

    refunds of employee contributions (70,782)                (70,782)                -                           

  Administrative expense -                           (3,531)                  3,531                   

Net changes (34,863)                185,966               (220,829)              

Balance at June 30, 2019 1,539,596            1,836,214            (296,618)              

Changes for the year:

  Service cost 43,028                 -                           43,028                 

  Interest cost 113,460               -                           113,460               

  Difference between expected and 

    actual experience 15,614                 -                           15,614                 

  Assumption changes 22,587                 -                           22,587                 

  Contributions—employer -                           25,902                 (25,902)                

  Contributions—employee -                           16,325                 (16,325)                

  Net investment income -                           126,379               (126,379)              

  Benefit payments, including

    refunds of employee contributions (54,584)                (54,584)                -                           

  Administrative expense -                           (3,785)                  3,785                   

Net changes 140,105               110,237               29,868                 

Balance at June 30, 2020 1,679,701$          1,946,451            (266,750)              

Increase (Decrease)
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(6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED 
 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension (Asset) Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 

The following presents the net pension (asset) liability of the District, calculated using the discount 

rate of 7.50% as of both July 1, 2019 and 2018, as well as what the District’s net pension (asset) 

liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 

1 percentage point higher than the current rate at June 30: 
 

1% Decrease

(6.50%)

Current Discount 

Rate (7.50%)

1% Increase

(8.50%)

 2020 

Net pension (asset) liability  $             (41,683) (266,750)              (454,507)              

 2019 

Net pension (asset) liability  $             (88,300) (296,618)              (470,116)              

 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and  

  Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District recognized pension expense (benefit) of 

$4,087 and $(55,216), respectively.  The District reported deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources at June 30: 
 

Deferred 

Outflows of

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of

Resources

Deferred 

Outflows of

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of

Resources

Differences between expected and 

  actual experience 12,058$       66,561         330              100,725       

Changes in assumptions 19,807         -                   5,557           -                   

Net difference between projected

  and actual earnings on 

  pension plan investments 26,946         27,556         49,183         41,333         

District contributions subsequent

  to measurement date 9,342           -                   24,478         -                   

 $       68,153           94,117           79,548         142,058 

2020 2019
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(6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, CONTINUED 
 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and  

  Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued 
 

Reported deferred outflows of resources of $9,342 related to pensions resulting from the District 

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a/an increase/decrease of 

the net pension (asset) liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.  The other amounts reported as 

deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 

recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended June 30:

2021 (11,663)$              

2022 (31,517)                

2023 3,823                   

2024 4,051                   

(35,306)$              

 
(7) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
 

The District has a defined contribution plan and trust, known as the “Employee Retirement System 

of Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District in Norman, Oklahoma, Defined Contribution 

Plan” (the “Contribution Plan”), in the form of The Oklahoma Municipal Retirement System 

Master Defined Contribution Plan.  The Contribution Plan is available only to the General Manager 

and contains a provision requiring the District to contribute up to 15% of the General Manager’s 

eligible compensation.  For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District contributed 

approximately $9,600 and $19,000, respectively, to the Contribution Plan.  Benefits depend solely 

on amounts contributed to the Contribution Plan plus investment earnings.   
 

(8) DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 

The District has a deferred compensation plan (the “Deferred Compensation Plan”) as authorized by 

Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, and in 

accordance with the provisions of Sections 1701 through 1706 of Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes. 
 

The Deferred Compensation Plan is available to all District employees.  Participants may make 

voluntary contributions up to the maximum permitted by law.  The District matches salary 

deferrals at 50%, up to 3% of the participant’s annual compensation.  Participants are fully vested 

in their contributions and the District’s contributions.  Participants may direct the investment of 

their contributions and the District’s contributions in available investment options offered by the 

Deferred Compensation Plan.  All interest, dividends, and investment fees are allocated to 

participants’ accounts.  The District’s contribution to the Deferred Compensation Plan in 2020 and 

2019 approximated $5,600 and $7,200, respectively. 
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CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 

CONDITION RATING AND ESTIMATE-TO-ACTUAL COMPARISON OF  

  MAINTENANCE OF INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

Condition Rating of Infrastructure Assets 

 

 2020  2019  2018 

Infrastructure assets (dam and reservoir) 99 99 92

Years Ended June 30,

 
Condition assessments of the infrastructure assets are made by the U.S. Department of the Interior’s 

Bureau of Reclamation (BOR).  The BOR typically performs a comprehensive assessment every 3 years 

and a limited condition assessment for other annual periods.  The ratings are based on the BOR’s “Facility 

Reliability Rating System for High and Significant Hazard Dams.”  The ratings are as follows:  Good 

(rating of 80 or greater); Fair (rating of 60 to 79); and Poor (rating of 59 or less). 

 

Estimate-to-Actual Comparison of Maintenance of Infrastructure Assets 

 

 2020  2019  2018  2017  2016 

Estimate 115,000$       105,000         95,000       75,500       70,000       

Actual 62,076           123,317         112,077     86,993       246,271     

Years Ended June 30,
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Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Total pension liability

Service cost 43,028$        44,582        43,043        29,546        39,199        36,379        

Interest cost 113,460        115,478      111,825      108,409      118,178      115,436      

Differences between expected 

  and actual experience 15,614          (124,141)    684             (20,798)      (205,605)    -                 

Assumption changes 22,587          -                 11,501        -                 -                 -                 

Benefit payments, including 

  refunds of employee contributions (54,584)        (70,782)      (69,691)      (76,338)      (79,253)      (80,831)      

Net change in total pension liability 140,105        (34,863)      97,362        40,819        (127,481)    70,984        

Total pension liability, beginning of year 1,539,596     1,574,459   1,477,097   1,436,278   1,563,759   1,492,775   

Total pension liability, end of year (a) 1,679,701$   1,539,596   1,574,459   1,477,097   1,436,278   1,563,759   

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions—employer 25,902$        115,860      118,989      117,934      82,298        180,423      

Contributions—employees 16,325          19,304        15,572        14,953        13,444        13,138        

Net investment income 126,379        125,115      180,366      13,452        36,413        168,530      

Administrative expenses (3,785)          (3,531)        (69,691)      (2,684)        (2,672)        (2,508)        

Benefit payments, including 

  refunds of employee contributions (54,584)        (70,782)      (3,125)        (76,338)      (79,253)      (80,831)      

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 110,237        185,966      242,111      67,317        50,230        278,752      

Plan fiduciary net position, 

  beginning of year 1,836,214     1,650,248   1,408,137   1,340,820   1,290,590   1,011,838   

Plan fiduciary net position,

  end of year (b) 1,946,451$   1,836,214   1,650,248   1,408,137   1,340,820   1,290,590   

Plan's net pension (asset) liability (a) - (b) (266,750)$    (296,618)    (75,789)      68,960        95,458        273,169      

         Only the last 6 fiscal years are presented because data for the prior 4 years is not readily available.

____________

         The amounts presented for each year-end were determined as of July 1 of the current year.

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION (ASSET) LIABILITY

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT
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Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Total pension liability 1,679,701$ 1,539,596 1,574,459 1,477,097 1,436,278 1,563,759 

Plan fiduciary net position 1,946,451   1,836,214 1,650,248 1,408,137 1,340,820 1,290,590 

Plan's net pension (asset) liability (266,750)$   (296,618)   (75,789)     68,960      95,458      273,169    

 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 

  percentage of the total pension liability 115.88% 119.27% 104.81% 95.33% 93.35% 82.53%

Covered payroll 306,761$    261,961    260,106    244,332    252,604    223,981    

Plan's net pension (asset) liability as a

  percentage of covered payroll (86.96)% (113.23)% (29.14)% 28.22% 37.79% 121.96%

         Only the last 6 fiscal years are presented because data for the prior 4 years is not readily available.

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION (ASSET) LIABILITY RATIOS

____________

         The amounts presented for each year-end were determined as of July 1 of the current year.

 
 

 



 

See Independent Auditors’ Report. 

 

- 32 - 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution 9,342$      24,939      40,367      47,278      66,965      82,298      

Contributions in relation to the

  actuarially determined contribution 9,342        24,478      115,860    118,989    117,934    82,298      

Contribution (deficit) excess -$              (461)          75,493      71,711      50,969      -                

 

Covered payroll 306,761$  261,961    260,106    244,332    252,604    223,981    

Contributions as a percentage of 

  covered payroll 3.05% 9.34% 44.54% 48.70% 46.69% 36.74%

         The amounts presented for each year-end were determined as of July 1 of the current year.

         Only the last 6 fiscal years are presented because data for the prior 4 years is not readily available.

____________

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT
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1421 East 45th Street • Shawnee, OK  74804 

P: 405.878.7300 • www.finley-cook.com • F: 405.395.3300 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON  

  INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND  

  ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON  

  AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

  ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

Board of Directors 

Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District 

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and 

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Central Oklahoma Master 

Conservancy District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to 

the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have 

issued our report thereon dated December 21, 2020.  Our report includes an explanatory paragraph 

disclaiming an opinion on required supplementary information.   

 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 

control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 

do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 

of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 

of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 

significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 

than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal controls that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 

 (Continued) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON  

  INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND  

  ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON  

  AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

  ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, CONTINUED 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 

determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 

provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 

reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

 

Purpose of This Report 

 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 

and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal 

control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.  

Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

 

 

 

Shawnee, Oklahoma 

December 21, 2020 
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CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

None noted. 
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CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

None noted. 





Item D.8



SURPLUS DECLARATION LIST 

February 4, 2021 

ITEM              Year      MODEL/SERIAL # 

1. WoodMizer sawmill and lathe      2017      LT40HDG26W 

2. Fertilizer spreader (500) 3‐point mount    unknown    unknown 

3. Bobcat brush hog attachment      unknown    456B4241XHNFK7469 

4. Bobcat sod roller        unknown     679100700 

5. Rhino auger 3‐point mount      unknown    unknown     

6. Rigid pipe threader        purchased 2017   33946C 

7. Polar cool system        unknown    00014202   

8. Miller tig welder dynasty 350      purchased 2017   MA270036L 

9. Northstar power washer      unknown    unknown 

10. Power washing trailer        2015      M15759AF / 09141215 





Item E.9 



LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 
February 4, 2021 

 
Conference call on January 14th with Kyle about temporary water contract and personnel handbook 
and Fair Labor Standards Act issues.   
 
Participated in video conference meeting on January 21st with Collins Balcome and James Allard 
from Bureau of Reclamation and Kyle about temporary water contract and draft amended language 
to provide flexibility on when temporary water is utilized by a member city.  A yield study and 
implications were also discussed. 
 
Prepared issues paper and dispatched to Kyle on January 22nd regarding Fair Labor Standards Act 
exempt and nonexempt classifications and Oklahoma statute requirement on pay periods for 
nonexempt employees, and procedure for emergency acquisitions by General Manager and Board. 
 
Prepared draft resolutions about audit and surplus property and dispatched to Kelley. 
 
 
Dean Couch, Counsel 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 



Item E.10 



Manager’s Report – February 4th, 2021 

• Shoreline Erosion Project 

o Dec 31st concluded the data collection from the floating wetland project 

o Approximately $19,000 left of BOR funds 

▪ One more invoice from OU  

▪ Opportunity to bill time to the project as we remove units from the water 

• Clean-up, Beautification and Maintenance 

o Relift facility and gatehouse meticulously cleaned and repainted floor, motors, piping, 

etc. 

o Gatehouse cleaned and painted inside as well 

o Cleaned-up all the “bone yard” area east of the road between the office and the plant 

▪ 3 roll-offs filled with debris collected over the last several decades 

▪ Metal that could be salvaged was taken to recycler.  Over $3,000 collected 

o Similar clean-up around shop area 

o Identified additional surplus equipment to auction 

o Gate chamber was cleaned out from gate repairs and de-humidifier installed according 

to BOR Recommendation report 

• Replaced heater in gatehouse to avoid damage during freezing weather 

• Contacted, met with and received proposals for needed software, hardware and programming 

of new Human Machine Interface (HMI) from two companies 

o Prime Controls of Lewisville, TX 

o Worth Hydrochem of Norman, OK 

• Staff meetings with outside benefits vendors 

o Met with American Fidelity to re-enroll on December 15th 

o Met with Horizon Financial Services (457b) to discuss investments and market 

conditions 

• Reorganized file/work room 

o Re-located several file cabinets  

o Preparing for possible old office demo 

• Back-up Generator at Main Plant 

o Assembled bid packet 

o Published notice in Norman Transcript and Journal Record (3 times each) 

o Pre-bid conference held on January 25th (four companies attended) 

o Bids due Feb 5th; to be opened on Feb 8th 

• Reserved Boom lift for surge tower exterior coating spot repair in May 

o Identified on recent Associated Facility Review by BOR 

• Held Staff meeting to discuss benefits changes as well as upcoming tasks for winter season 

• Christmas lunch was prepared by Kyle and Kelley and held on December 11th 

• Gutters were installed on office building 

 



• Motor #5 (Del City) at re-lift was serviced by Southwest Electric 

o New vendor, pleased with service 

• Technician from Hydradyne assessed and serviced gatehouse pump 

o Has been extremely noisy for several years 

o Recommended a new pump which has been ordered 

• Had “spare” VFDs load tested to ensure we had back-ups available 

o Will need a spare 100-hp for Relift facility (MWC side)  

• Continued investigation of building quotes for new storage facility 

• Continued work on needs for demo old office building.  (electric relocation, data/coms 

relocation, inspections, etc…) 

o Office back-up generator order; should arrive any day 

• Successfully renegotiated an amended and extended contract with BOR for temporary water 

use 

o Will be coming to the Board for action in March 

o This is the federal contract that allows the District to use temporary water (Norman, in 

turn,  purchases through a contract from the District) 

•  General Manager participated in two workgroups for which he has been asked to serve  

o Lake Thunderbird Watershed Alliance Technical Advisory Group 

o Oklahoma Opinion Leaders Network (OLAN) for S3OK: Finding Socially Sustainable 

Solutions for Water, Carbon, and Infrastructure Resilience in Oklahoma 

• Commenced comprehensive review of the Personnel Policy Manual 

o Updated with new benefits changes 

o Working with Kristen Brightmire whom the District has utilized previously 
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